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Tyler vier, Texas.
Bookkecping, Shorihand. Telegraphy, Busincss Ailmlnblnilo’_n snd Finnnce.

During the late 19" and early 20" century, one of the largest business training schools in
the country was located right here in Tyler, Texas. In the late 1890°s, brothers C.L. and Locket
Adair moved Whitesboro Teachers Normal College from Grayson County to Tyler and merged it
with what was then called Tyler College. The school’s original location was the Texas Fruit
Palace complex located on the northwest corner of South Vine Avenue and West Front Street.
When the Fruit Palace was destroyed by fire in 1903, plans began immediately for a new
location. A three-story, 50,000-square foot brick building was built at 115 South College
Avenue in 1904, right next to the newly-constructed Carnegie Public Library. The top two floors
were used by the Tyler Commercial College, the school’s new name, while Alexander
Golenternek operated a furniture store on the ground level. An attached expansion was built in
1913 on the north side, in effect mirroring the first building’s appearance and doubling its size.

According to a 1914 postcard featuring TCC, the college was “The Largest School of
Bookkeeping, Business Training, Shorthand, Steno-typewriting, Typewriting, Cotton Classing,
Telegraphy, Business Administration, and Finance in America.” It had 2,000 students and 20

teachers. “Positions secured...Prepare to raise your own salary,” the advertising piece offered.



A key figure associated with TCC was college president Henry Edward Byrne.
Originally from Mississippi, Byrne developed his own system of shorthand, soon known in print
ads as “the famous Byrne Simplified Shorthand.” Byme claimed a graduate of his shorthand
course would be able to take down words at 150 words a minute or the class would be free.
Byrne also operated the Byrne Publishing Company in a building next door to the college, which
printed all of TCC’s textbooks.

The college developed a well-respected petroleum geology department, world-renowned
cotton grading department, and a radio station so students could learn about broadcasting. The
college kept churning out students during the East Texas oil boom of the early 1930’s and saw
even more students when it offered defense-related instruction during World War II.

TCC remained downtown until 1956, when the Rutherford Metropolitan School
of Dallas bought it. New owner Tracy Rutherford moved the college from its 1904-vintage
building to a facility at 235 South Broadway, where it operated for nearly another decade before
finally closing for good, a victim of the growth of junior colleges and four-year universities. The
old downtown building on College Avenue was razed in 1963 to make way for a drive-thru bank

built on the site.



Postcard image of Tyler Commercial College, circa 1912

An attached expansion was built in 1913 on the north side of the school, in effect cloning the
first building’s appearance, as shown below.
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A Group of
Tyler Commercial

College Students,
Tyler, Tex.
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The above c. 1905 view shows a group of students in front of the Carnegie Public Library (left)
and Tyler Commercial College. The below mid-1910’s postcard shows a student assembly on
the second floor of the original college building, with the view looking west toward the rear of
the building. This may have been what was called a Saturday Program, when the students would
gather on each Saturday morning for examinations, lectures, or to listen to an occasional
minister.




The below late-1910s view shows Tyler Commercial College’s cotton classing training. The
school was the only one with a special class for women, which filled a real need when the men
were away fighting in World War I. Classes in radio telegraphy and telephony started in the
1920s, and the college actually provide radio-operation training as a Signal Corps school during
World War II, teaching 2,000 army staff from April 1942 to July 1943.
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The below view shows a social gathering in the third-floor “auditorium” in the newer half of the
building. When Tyler permitted 3.2-percent beer and wine sales in the 1930s, this space was
rented for public dances with live bands.

TYLER CéJMMERCIAL COLLEGE ROOF GARDEN CENTER OF STUDENT RECREATIONAL ACTIVITIES
REGULAR WEEKLY SOCIAL EVENT CHARLIE AGHEW ANMD HIS YEAST FOAMERS
TYLER TEXAS ARy

Sources: Reed Jr., Robert E. “Postcard History: Tyler.” Arcadia Publishing (2009); Cox, Mike.
“Typing in Tyler: The Business School Model in East Texas” Accessed Nov. 28, 2012.
<http://www.texasescapes.com/MikeCoxTexasTales/Typing-in-Tyler-Business-School-Model-
in-East-Texas.htm>; Worchel, Dayna. “College Helped Birth Tyler's First Licensed Radio
Station.” Tyler Moming Telegraph / TylerPaper.com. 10 Oct. 2011.
<http://www.tylerpaper.com/article/20111010/NEWS08/111019998/-1/RSS01>.

Suggested Marker Caption

Tyler Commercial College educated students in subjects ranging from business training
to petroleum geology and cotton classing from the late 1890’s until the 1960’s. Located at 115
South College Avenue, at one time it was considered the largest business training school in
America,




Narrative for THC Subject Marker: Tyler Commercial College

Context:

A skilled workforce is critical to a growing economy. The problem Tyler, Texas
faced toward the end of the nineteenth century was finding this skilled workforce. After
incorporation on January 29, 1850, Tyler which had always been a hub of agricultural
activity in Smith County soon transformed into a center for shipping and commerce.'
Combined with an increase of new construction, the establishment of business, and
improvement of infrastructure, Tyler found itself as the center of business activity in
Smith County. The Tyler public school system was established in 1882 but there
remained a need for a facility capable of imparting a practical business education.? In
1899 Tyler College, later known as Tyler Commercial College was created. The center
for business training offered bookkeeping, shorthand, and general business instruction.®

Tyler Commercial College established itself at a time when Tyler was
transitioning from an economy based on the primary level of agricultural production to
the secondary and tertiary levels of transportation, refining, and business management of
those fruits of the soil. T.C.C. played an integral part of Tyler’s growth by providing
graduates with a practical business education in a relatively short amount of time, in
many cases six months.* As Tyler grew T.C.C’s role in the community expanded to
include the role of civic center. Finally the most distinguished contribution not only to
Tyler but to the country occurred during T.C.C’s service as the Army Signal Corps

School Detachment where two thousand men were trained as radio operators.’



Overview:

December 5, 1899, Austin, Texas, the charter of incorporation is filed with the
Secretary of State’s office for Tyler College of Tyler, Texas. Without capital stock,
incorporators included C.L. Adair, A. Harris, and R.B. Hubbard.® C.L. Adair came to
Tyler from Whitesboro, Texas in Grayson County. In 1894 he and his brother Noah
opened the Adair Normal School the aim of which was to provide university level
education. Due to a lack of enrollment and subsequent financial distress the school closed
two years later in 1896.’

Coincidently, another Texas enterprise to fail in 1896 was the Texas Fruit Palace.
This three-story frame building located at the northwest corner of Front and Vine Streets
was used as a horticultural center where local farmers could showcase prize winning
produce and discuss agricultural matters with the public.® The vacant structure provided
ample classroom space as well as living quarters for instructors and students alike.”

The 1900 Federal Census taken in June 16, lists C.L., 37, and Noah Adair, 30,
F.A. Glenn, 39, and H.E. Byrne, 29, as principals and instructors. Maggie Ogden, 27,
from Iowa and E.H. Byrne, 27, from Mississippi were listed as instructors while Sadie
Adair, 27, was marked as the school matron. Sadie and C.L. Adair were joined at the
Fruit Palace by their two-month old daughter Lucille. Also living on campus were
twenty-seven pupils whose ages ranged from sixteen to forty-three, hailing from
Massachusetts to Detroit, Michigan and all parts of Texas.'® On April 1, 1904, Tyler
Commercial College was incorporated by C.L. and Noah Adair, H.E. Byrne, and F.A.
Glenn whom were named directors of the college. The document filed states that the

corporation “shall exist for the period of Fifty years from the date of the filing of these



articles.”"! Frank A. Glenn, born in Georgia found his way to Tyler after leaving the
Whitesboro Teachers Normal School in Grayson County.'? Henry Edward Byrne, born in
Mississippi came to Tyler as the creator of an exciting new form of shorthand.'* The
“famous Byrne Shorthand” was advertised in the Dallas Morning News next to ads for
The University of Texas, Texas Christian University, Hardin College and Conservatory,
and North Texas Female College. Byrne proclaimed that a graduate of his seven to
twelve week course was guaranteed a word transcribing speed of one-hundred and fifty
words a minute or there would be no charge. Byrne claimed his system required half the
time and cost to learn with half of the time to execute over competitor’s systems. * Byrne
Shorthand was a boon for T.C.C., enticing ambitious students, eager to enter the
workplace.

In addition to creating his patented system of shorthand Byrne also established
publishing facilities in Tyler which produced the majority of textbooks as well as blank
books and other supplies used at T.C.C." Byrne Publishing Company published Byrne

Duplex English Punctuation and Correspondence by Frank A. Glenn, Byrne Practical

Bookkeeping and Business Training by Henry Edward Byrne, and Self Instruction for

Byrne Simplified Shorthand by Henry Edward Byrne.'® In addition to the Tyler facility

Byrne expanded to Chicago and Dallas. In 1914 Byrne was appointed by President
Wilson to the educational committee sent to Europe to investigate civic conditions in
leading cities there.'’ In 1924 Byrne sold his share of T.C.C. and moved to Dallas where
he continued his publishing company. He authored seven textbooks for commercial
college use, founded Byrne Commercial College of Dallas and opened commercial

schools in Houston, San Antonio, Fort Worth, and Oklahoma City. 18



On March 2, 1901 senator Stafford’s bill was passed, placing Tyler College on the
list of colleges whose diploma entitled holders to teacher certification.'® This occurrence
expanded the T.C.C.’s graduates’ horizons’ beyond the prospects of business work to
teaching as well.

Fire destroyed the Fruit Palace building on December 13, 1903. “The first alarm
came at 8:00 A M. and the building collapsed thirty-five minutes later as a total loss. At
this time, over four-hundred students were enrolled and many were housed, along with
some faculty members, on the second floor.” Classes were held in the Armory Building
until permanent facilities were found. 2° That permanent facility was created by the effort
and generosity of the citizens of Tyler. On April 6, 1904, Eliza Weir, a feme sole
conveyed to S.H. Cox, J.W. Wright and A.E. Judge acting as trustees of the citizens of
the City of Tyler property located on the West side of South College. Weir was paid one-
thousand five-hundred dollars raised by contributions for the land that was a part of block
eight of the plat of the City of Tyler found in book F page four-hundred and ten of Smith
County Deed Records.”' The property was then conveyed to the Tyler Commercial
College on the conditions that the school would maintain classes for ten-years with “at
least 250 bona fide matriculations or students during each of said years.”?2 On September
14, 1914, having maintained their obligations T.C.C. received ownership of the property
conveyed to the trustees of Tyler on April 6, 1904. With the execution of these
instruments Tyler exhibited their confidence in T.C.C. and appreciation for the service
the college provided.

In 1918 T.C.C. claimed three-thousand and five-hundred enrollments for the

previous year with twenty-five-thousand former students.” Academic offerings had



expanded from classes on bookkeeping and shorthand to retail work, insurance, freight,
real estate, banking cost accounting, farm accounting, commercial law, rapid calculation,
business arithmetic, salesmanship, business grammar, spelling, letter writing, business
penmanship, telegraphy, and cotton classing and handling.** To prepare students for the
real business world a mock bank was constructed on campus where “play money” was
tendered and accounted for.®

W.M. Roberts came to T.C.C. in 1908 as a vice-president and instructor.?® He
made it his life’s work to elevate the school from a specified business and bookkeeping
school to a true institution of higher learning.*” In 1925 Roberts proclaimed that the
school was prepared to accommodate four-thousand students yearly or two-thousand
students each six-month term.2® President Roberts, a member on the board of directors of
the Tyler Hotel Company, exclaimed that, “we are the largest in the number of students
we can care for efficiently, largest in the standpoint of buildings and floor space, largest
in brains and largest in number of students that we have placed in good positions. We
excel in brains as well as bricks.””® During this time W.M. Roberts acted as president,
P.A. Botts as principal, and Dr. W.F. Andrews as Dean of Faculty.** Roberts was elected
president of the Southwest Private Commercial Schools Association in 1927, which
naturally T.C.C. belonged.*!

Some new classes offered for the 1925-1926 school years include a private
secretarial course which lasted six months and cost three-hundred and eighty-five dollars
total, including tuition, books and supplies, and room and board. Required classes
included Advertising, Parliamentary Law, Credit and Collections, and Salesmanship. A

six month General Railroad Course could be had for a total of two-hundred and seventy



dollars. Required classes include Station Work, Manipulation of Switchboard, Care of
Batteries and Instruments, Cablegrams, and Railroad Rules and Regulation. A course that
would become a standard of T.C.C. was Radio Telegraphy.*

Since its inception T.C.C. was a coeducational institution, something rare in the
post Victorian moral climate.* This open mindedness is extolled in a quote from the
1925-1926 course catalog:

“Knowledge of business makes a woman independent because it insures her of
steady employment and places her in a pleasant environment where she can eamn
promotion rapidly and regularly. A business training course is a stepping stone to all the
professions open to women as well as to men. Women entering the professions or the
business world for a livelthood evidently do not sacrifice any of their womanliness. It
broadens their sphere and vision of life and makes them more efficient.”**

T.C.C. employed female instructors since its opening in 1899.%° One graduate, Julia
Shamburger, went on to found her own business college in Dallas, Texas where she
taught her own method of shorthand.*

W.M. Roberts recognized that the aim of his students was acquire employment
and he adjusted T.C.C. class offerings accordingly. This included offering courses
targeted for work at specific companies. Courses in Western Union procedure and
equipment were available, later General Motors Accounting along with Civil Service and
Federal and State Accounting courses were offered.’” Preparation for the modern
business world included training on new office place technology. Instruction on the

Dalton adding machine, Electric Burroughs’s Posting Machine, Mechanical Accounting

Register, all sorts of typewriters, mimeographs, and Gammeter Multigraph were all



available at T.C.C. Add to this list the radio department, and T.C.C. stands proudly at the
head of technological instruction in East Texas.”®

On April 18, 1931 KGKB, powered up and broadcasted a five-hour special
presentation from its studio in the T.C.C. building. The presence of the 100-watt station
set T.C.C. apart as “the only school in the country with a general broadcasting station.””
Radio operators were needed not only at commercial stations like KGKB but also in
aviation and the merchant marines, “which hundreds of young Tyler graduates have
gone:.”"'D

While most of the country suffered the ravages of the Great Depression Tyler
carried on by virtue of the East Texas oilfields.*! Many oil companies opened offices in
Tyler and naturally T.C.C. graduates found their way onto the payrolls. In addition to
T.C.C. graduates finding employment in the oil industry, the T.C.C. auditorium was
rented out on the weekends and was host to many dances.*? Dances were not the only
form of entertainment offered on college grounds. The Tyler Symphony Orchestra
presented its first concert on March 16, 1936 at the “College Roof,” top floor of the
T.C.C., with a whopping seven-hundred and fifty in attendance.” On January 20, 1938
T.C.C. welcomed visitors to a “newly remodeled and modernized” school. W.M. Roberts
who celebrated his thirtieth year of employment exclaimed that more than fifty-thousand
students had graduated from the school during its existence.**

In August of 1941 W.M. Roberts served as chairman of a committee selected by
the National Association of Private Commercial Schools. This Committee worked with

the Coordinator of Defense Training Activities of the United States to discuss the

possibilities of training needed personnel in the case of war. Roberts is quoted as saying:



“There are already well-established schools that are responsible institutions. They
are able and ready to do their part to help train young people along useful lines either for
war or for peace. There is a dire shortage of properly trained young men and women to
meet the need of both government and business. Young people can show their patriotism
by training themselves to help meet this emergency.”™

April 1942, the first class of the Army Signal Corps School Detachment arrived in
Tyler. Major Virgil E. Caldwell was commanding officer of the program while John B.
Sheppard, a highly skilled radio operator was head instructor and superintendent. Major
Caldwell had been instructed to enter the 8" Corps into a contract with T.C.C. to train
three-hundred enlisted personnel in high-speed radio code work.* The absence of
military barracks required servicemen to bunk at local hotels. The Blackstone allotted
400 beds, Bluebonnet Courts 140 beds, and the Alamo Plaza 160 beds.*’ Aided by three
administrative Sergeants, Offer, Giraud, and Hatfield, as well as the T.C.C. radio
department civilian faculty the first group of one-hundred men completed their thirteen
week course followed by the second group on April 18 and the third on May 2. This
training was vital to “radio communication between troops, the establishment of message
centers in combat areas and the deploying of soldiers on various missions were badly
needed in every theater of war.”*® When the T.C.C. was chosen for service “Roberts
immediately made an entire floor available and rows of desks fitted with headphones and
telegraph keys were installed.”® Servicemen were responsible for a minimum code speed
of fifteen words per minute sending and receiving. Those that showed high competency
were allowed to train on “the bug,” “an extremely high speed and sensitive telegraph key

where the operator would send and receive whole phrases and sentences at a time.”*



After two months of successful operation, assistant chief of staff General
Donovan made his first official inspection. The result of the inspection was the Air Corps
and Anti-Aircraft Artillery headquarters request for permission to enlist their personnel in
the school. The positive attention prompted a new contract to be drawn up for the training
of an additional one-thousand and seven-hundred radio operators, “Major Caldwell was
promoted to Lieutenant-Colonel and his assignment was made permanent.”*' The final
group trained at the T.C.C., facility was the Third Company B on July 31, 1943. Two-
thousand radio operators had received training on T.C.C. grounds. Not only was this
service important for the logistic capability of our Armed Forces it also brought funds
into the Tyler economy and paved the way for the Camp Fannin Troop Replacement
Center.*

In April of 1957 the Rutherford Metropolitan school of Business in Dallas
purchased Tyler Commercial College. The school was moved from South College to the
Manziel Building on South Broadway where it continued to served the community for a
decade or so until increased competition between area junior colleges and four year
universities became too much.”® Old furniture from the South College campus was sold
as souvenirs and in 1965 the vacant building was demolished to make way for a motor-

bank.>

Historical Significance:
Tyler Commercial College served Tyler and Smith County from the turn of the
century, through Great Depression and two world wars. In a time where Tyler needed

skilled business professionals Tyler Commercial College was there. Through the prompt



training of business professionals and teachers Tyler Commercial College was able to
supply Tyler with the workforce needed to bring Tyler into the modern age which
simultaneously increased the prosperity of Smith County. Tyler Commercial College
brought cutting edge office technology to the students of Tyler giving them a competitive
edge on other job searchers. Tyler Commercial College served as a center of academic
inquiry during the week and hearty entertainment and fellowship on the week ends.
Finally and most importantly Tyler Commercial College provided the facilities needed to
train two-thousand radio operators needed by the Armed Forces during a time of war.
The efficacy of those soldiers’ training singled out Tyler Commercial College as a
competent center of learning and Tyler as a hospitable location for further military
installations. Through this fortuitous arrangement Tyler stood in good graces to receive
the Camp Fannin Troop Replacement Center which injected millions into the Smith

County Economy and trained hundreds of thousands of troops.
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